

Persons with disabilities experiencing problems accessing this page should contact NCHSED through e-mail at [nchsed@cdc.gov](mailto:nchsed@cdc.gov) or by calling 301-458-4688.

## ICD-10-CM EXTERNAL CAUSE of INJURIES INDEX 2011 Addenda

**Key:****New or Revised text:** Underline**Deleted text:** ~~Strikeout~~**Accident** (to) X58

- caused by, due to
- - lightning ~~X33~~ - see subcategory T75.0
- - thunderbolt ~~X33~~ - see subcategory T75.0
- late effect of - see W00-X58 with ~~q as terminal character~~ 7th character S
- nontraffic (victim's mode of transport NOS) V88.9
- sequelae of - see W00-X58 with ~~q as terminal character~~ with 7th character S
- traffic (victim's mode of transport NOS) V87.9
- transport (involving injury to) V99
- - aircraft NEC ~~V97.89~~
- - occupant (of)
- - - rickshaw - see Accident, transport, pedal cycle
- - - ~~motorized~~ - see Accident, transport, three-wheeled motor vehicle)
- - pedestrian
- - - conveyance (occupant) V09.9
- - - motorized mobility scooter V00.838
- - - - collision with stationary object V00.832
- - - - fall from V00.831
- - - - rolling shoes V00.158
- - - - wheeled shoe V00.158
- watercraft V94.9
- - causing
- - injury NEC V91.89
- - - ~~specified type NEC V91.8~~
- - - specified type NEC V91.89
- - nonpowered, struck by
- - powered vessel V94.21
- - specified type NEC V94.89
- - striking swimmer
- - powered V94.11
- - unpowered V94.12

**Activity** (involving) (of victim at time of event) Y93.9

- capture the flag Y93.68A
- clothing care and maintenance NEC Y93.E9
- dodge ball Y93.68A
- four square Y93.68A
- household (interior) maintenance NEC Y93.E9
- kickball Y93.68A
- maintenance
- - exterior building NEC Y93.H9
- - household (interior) NEC Y93.E9
- physical games generally associated with school recess, summer camp and children Y93.68A
- property maintenance ~~NE Y93.H9~~
- - exterior NEC Y93.H9
- - interior NEC Y93.E9

**Assault** (homicidal) (by) (in) Y09

- crashing of
- - motor vehicle Y03.8
- - - pushed in front of Y03.42.0
- late effect of - see X92-Y08 with ~~q as terminal character~~ with 7th character S
- placing before moving object ~~Y02~~ NEC Y02.8
- - motor vehicle Y03.42.0
- poisoning B - see categories T36-T65 with ~~terminal digit 3~~ with 7th character S
- pushing
- - before moving object ~~Y02~~ NEC Y02.8
- - - motor vehicle Y03.42.0
- - ~~from high place Y04~~
- ~~rape Y05~~

- - from high place Y01
- - - subway train Y02.1
- - - train Y02.1
- from high place Y01
- rape T74.2-
- sequelae of - see X92-Y08 with ~~q as terminal character~~ with 7th character S
- sexual (by bodily force) ~~Y05~~ T74.2-

**Bite, bitten by**

- ~~mammal NEC W55.89~~
- - ~~marine W56.89~~
- ~~marine animal (nonvenomous) W56.89~~
- mammal NEC W55.81
- - marine W56.81
- marine animal (nonvenomous) W56.81
- ~~spider (nonvenomous) - see subcategory T73.9~~
- spider (nonvenomous) W57
- squirrel W53.21

**Blood alcohol level Y90.9**

- 200-239mg/100ml Y90.7~~Blow X58~~
- ~~by law-enforcing agent, police (on duty) - see Legal, intervention, manhandling~~
- - ~~blunt object - see Legal, intervention, blunt object~~

Blow X58

- by law-enforcing agent, police (on duty) - see Legal, intervention, manhandling
- - blunt object - see Legal, intervention, blunt object

**Burn, burned, burning** (accidental) (by) (from) (on)

- lightning ~~X33-~~ see subcategory T75.0

**Butted by animal W55.89**Constriction (external)

- hair W49.01
- jewelry W49.04
- ring W49.04
- rubber band W49.03
- specified item NEC W49.09
- string W49.02
- thread W49.02

**Contact** (accidental)

- with
- - alligator W58.09
- - bull W55.29
- - - gored W55.22
- - can
- - - opener W27.54
- - crocodile W58.19
- - fork W27.54
- - ice-pick W27.54
- - meat
- - - grinder (domestic) W29.0
- - - - nonpowered W27.54
- - needle (sewing) W27.43
- - paper-cutter W27.65
- - tool W27.8
- - - hand (not powered) W27.8
- - - - can opener W27.54
- - - - fork W27.54
- - - - ice-pick W27.54
- - - - kitchen utensil W27.54
- - - - meat grinder W27.54
- - - - needle (sewing) W27.43
- - - - - hypodermic (~~contaminated~~) W27.3W46.0
- - - - - ~~paper cutter W27.6~~
- - - - - hypodermic W46.0
- - - - - - contaminated W46.1
- - - - - paper cutter W27.5

**Discharge** (accidental)

- firearm (accidental) W34.00
- hunting rifle W33.02
- legal intervention ~~Y35.034~~
- injuring
- bystander Y35.032
- law enforcement personnel Y35.0321
- suspect Y35.0343
- larger W33.00
- specified NEC W33.09
- legal intervention ~~Y35.094~~
- injuring
- bystander Y35.0932
- law enforcement personnel Y35.0921
- suspect Y35.0943
- legal intervention ~~Y35.004~~
- injuring
- bystander Y35.0032
- law enforcement personnel Y35.0021
- suspect Y35.0043
- using rubber bullet ~~Y35.044~~
- injuring
- bystander Y35.0432
- law enforcement personnel Y35.0421
- suspect Y35.0443

**Environmental pollution related condition- see Z57, Z58 Z57****Explosion** (accidental) (of) (with secondary fire) W40.9

- dynamite W40.0
- in
- legal intervention ~~Y35.114~~
- bystander Y35.1132
- law enforcement personnel Y35.1121
- suspect Y35.1143
- explosive (material) W40.9
- specified NEC W40.8
- in
- legal intervention ~~Y35.194~~
- bystander Y35.1932
- law enforcement personnel Y35.1921
- suspect Y35.1943
- grenade W40.8
- in
- legal intervention ~~Y35.194~~
- injuring
- bystander Y35.1932
- law enforcement personnel Y35.1921
- suspect Y35.1943
- mortar bomb W40.8
- legal intervention ~~Y35.194~~
- bystander Y35.1932
- law enforcement personnel Y35.1921
- suspect Y35.1943
- shell (artillery) NEC W40.8
- legal intervention ~~Y35.124~~
- bystander Y35.1232
- law enforcement personnel Y35.1221
- suspect Y35.1243

**Exposure** (to) X58

- electric current W86.8
- lightning ~~X33~~- see subcategory T75.0
- taser W86.8
- legal intervention ~~Y35.89~~- see category Y35
- G-forces (abnormal) W49.9
- gravitational forces (abnormal) W49.9
- high-pressure jet (hydraulic) (pneumatic) W49.9
- hydraulic jet W49.9

- inanimate mechanical force W49.9
- jet, high-pressure (hydraulic) (pneumatic) W49.9
- lightning ~~X33~~- see subcategory T75.0
- mechanical forces NEC W49.9
- - inanimate NEC W49.9
- pneumatic jet W49.9
- smoke - see also Exposure, fire
- - tobacco, second hand ~~X58.4~~Z77.22
- vibration W49.9
- waves
- - infrasound W49.9

#### External cause status Y99.9

- child assisting in compensated work for family Y99.8
- family member assisting in compensated work for other family member Y99.8
- volunteer activity Y99.82

#### Factors, supplemental

- environmental-pollution-related condition- see Z57, ~~Z58~~
- work-related condition- ~~use Y3 with extension 2~~ Y99.0

#### Fall, falling (accidental) W19

- down
- - embankment W17.81
- - hill W17.81
- - ramp W10.32
- due to
- - grocery cart tipping over W17.82
- from, off, out of
- - embankment W17.81
- - ~~haystack~~ W17.8
- - ~~high place~~ NEC W17.8
- - grocery cart W17.82
- - haystack W17.89
- - high place NEC W17.89
- - incline W10.32
- - machine, machinery - see also Contact, with, by type of machine
- - - not in operation W17.89
- - ~~one level to another~~ NEC W17.8
- - motorized mobility scooter W05.2
- - ~~one level to another~~ NEC W17.89
- - quarry W17.89
- - ramp W10.32
- - scooter (nonmotorized) W05.1
- - - motorized mobility W05.2
- - stairs, steps W10.9
- - - incline W10.32
- - - ramp W10.32
- - vehicle (in motion) NEC V89.9 - see also Accident, transport
- - - stationary W17.89
- - ~~wheelchair~~ ~~W05~~, non-moving W05.0
- in, on
- - incline W10.32
- - ramp W10.32
- - staircase, stairs, steps W10.9
- - - incline W10.32
- into
- - haystack W17.89
- - opening in surface NEC W17.89
- - quarry W17.89
- - shaft W17.89
- - tank W17.89
- involving
- - ~~wheelchair~~ ~~W05~~, non-moving W05.0
- on same level W18.30
- - due to
- - - specified NEC W18.39
- - - stepping on an object W18.31
- out of
- - ~~wheelchair~~ ~~W05~~, non-moving W05.0

- over
- - embankment W17.81
- same level W18.930

**Fallen on by**

- animal (not being ridden) NEC W55.89
- ~~being ridden V06~~ - see also Accident, transport

**Forces of nature** X39.8

- lightning ~~X33~~ - see subcategory T75.0

**Gored by bull** W55.292**Inappropriate operation performed** ~~Y65.5~~

- correct operation on wrong side or body part (wrong side) (wrong site) Y65.53
- operation intended for another patient done on wrong patient Y65.52
- wrong operation performed on correct patient Y65.51

**Incident, adverse**

- device
- - medical Y82.9
- - - specified type NEC Y82.08

**Infrasound waves** (causing injury) W49.9**Jumped, jumping**

- before moving object ~~X84~~ NEC X81.8
- - subway train X81.1
- - train X81.1
- from
- - high place NEC W17.89

**Kicked by**

- animal NEC W55.892
- person(s) (accidentally) W50.1
- - in
- - - legal intervention ~~Y35.814~~
- - - - bystander Y35.8132
- - - - law enforcement personnel Y35.8121
- - - - suspect Y35.8143

**Knocked down** (accidentally) (by) NOS X58

- animal (not being ridden) NEC - see also Struck by, by type of animal
- ~~being ridden V06~~

**Legal**

- intervention (by) ~~Y35.99~~
- - blunt object ~~Y35.304~~
- - - baton ~~Y35.314~~
- - - - bystander Y35.3132
- - - - law enforcement personnel Y35.3121
- - - - suspect Y35.3143
- - - injuring
- - - - bystander Y35.3032
- - - - law enforcement personnel Y35.3021
- - - - suspect Y35.3043
- - - specified NEC ~~Y35.394~~
- - - - bystander Y35.3932
- - - - law enforcement personnel Y35.3921
- - - - suspect Y35.3943
- - - stave ~~Y35.394~~
- - - - bystander Y35.3932
- - - - law enforcement personnel Y35.3921
- - - - suspect Y35.3943
- - explosive(s) ~~Y35.104~~
- - - dynamite ~~Y35.114~~
- - - - bystander Y35.1132
- - - - law enforcement personnel Y35.1121
- - - - suspect Y35.1143
- - - grenade ~~Y35.194~~

~~----- bystander Y35.193~~2  
~~----- law enforcement personnel Y35.192~~1  
~~----- suspect Y35.194~~3  
~~--- injuring~~  
~~----- bystander Y35.103~~2  
~~----- law enforcement personnel Y35.102~~1  
~~----- suspect Y35.104~~3  
~~--- mortar bomb Y35.194~~  
~~----- bystander Y35.193~~2  
~~----- law enforcement personnel Y35.192~~1  
~~----- suspect Y35.194~~3  
~~--- shell Y35.124~~  
~~----- bystander Y35.123~~2  
~~----- law enforcement personnel Y35.122~~1  
~~----- suspect Y35.124~~3  
~~--- specified NEC Y35.194~~  
~~----- bystander Y35.193~~2  
~~----- law enforcement personnel Y35.192~~1  
~~----- suspect Y35.194~~3  
~~-- firearm(s) (discharge) Y35.004~~  
~~--- handgun Y35.024~~  
~~----- bystander Y35.023~~2  
~~----- law enforcement personnel Y35.022~~1  
~~----- suspect Y35.024~~3  
~~--- injuring~~  
~~----- bystander Y35.003~~2  
~~----- law enforcement personnel Y35.002~~1  
~~----- suspect Y35.004~~3  
~~--- machine gun Y35.014~~  
~~----- bystander Y35.013~~2  
~~----- law enforcement personnel Y35.012~~1  
~~----- suspect Y35.014~~3  
~~--- rifle pellet Y35.034~~  
~~----- bystander Y35.033~~2  
~~----- law enforcement personnel Y35.032~~1  
~~----- suspect Y35.034~~3  
~~--- rubber bullet Y35.044~~  
~~----- bystander Y35.043~~2  
~~----- law enforcement personnel Y35.042~~1  
~~----- suspect Y35.044~~3  
~~--- specified NEC Y35.094~~  
~~----- bystander Y35.093~~2  
~~----- law enforcement personnel Y35.092~~1  
~~----- suspect Y35.094~~3  
~~-- gas (asphyxiation) (poisoning) Y35.204~~  
~~--- injuring~~  
~~----- bystander Y35.203~~2  
~~----- law enforcement personnel Y35.202~~1  
~~----- suspect Y35.204~~3  
~~--- specified NEC Y35.294~~  
~~----- bystander Y35.293~~2  
~~----- law enforcement personnel Y35.292~~1  
~~----- suspect Y35.294~~3  
~~--- tear gas Y35.214~~  
~~----- bystander Y35.213~~2  
~~----- law enforcement personnel Y35.212~~1  
~~----- suspect Y35.214~~3  
~~-- injuring~~  
~~--- bystander Y35.93~~2  
~~--- law enforcement personnel Y35.92~~1  
~~--- suspect Y35.94~~3  
~~-- late effect (of) - see Y35 with q as terminal character 7th character S~~  
~~-- manhandling Y35.814~~  
~~--- injuring~~  
~~----- bystander Y35.813~~2  
~~----- law enforcement personnel Y35.812~~1  
~~----- suspect Y35.814~~3  
~~-- sequelae (of) - see Y35 with q as terminal character with 7th character S~~  
~~-- sharp objects Y35.404~~  
~~--- bayonet Y35.414~~

- - - - bystander Y35.41~~3~~2
- - - - law enforcement personnel Y35.41~~2~~1
- - - - suspect Y35.41~~4~~3
- - - injuring
- - - bystander Y35.40~~3~~2
- - - law enforcement personnel Y35.40~~2~~1
- - - suspect Y35.40~~4~~3
- - - specified NEC ~~Y35.49~~4
- - - - bystander Y35.49~~3~~2
- - - - law enforcement personnel Y35.49~~2~~1
- - - - suspect Y35.49~~4~~3
- - specified means NEC ~~Y35.89~~4
- - - injuring
- - - suspect Y35.89~~0~~3

**Lightning** (shock) (stroke) (struck by) ~~X33-~~ see subcategory T75.0

**Lying before train, vehicle or other moving object** X81.8

- subway train X81.1
- train X81.1

**Malfunction** (mechanism or component) (of)

- firearm W34.10

**Military operations** (injuries to military and civilians occurring during peacetime on military property and during routine military exercises and operations) (by) (from) (involving) Y37.90-

- fire Y37.30-
- - specified NEC Y37.39-

**Misadventure(s)** to patient(s) during surgical or medical care Y69

- failure
- - in dosage Y63.9
- - - nonadministration of necessary drug or biological substance Y63.62
- inappropriate
- - operation performed ~~Y65.5-~~ see Inappropriate operation performed
- nonadministration of necessary drug or biological substance Y63.62
- performance of inappropriate operation ~~Y65.5-~~ see Inappropriate operation performed
- specified type NEC Y65.8
- - performance of inappropriate operation ~~Y65.5-~~ see Inappropriate operation performed

**Nonadministration** (of)

- drug or biological substance (necessary) Y63.62

**Pecked by bird** W641.99

**Perpetrator, perpetration, of assault, maltreatment and neglect** (by) Y07.~~50~~9

- boyfriend Y07.43~~2~~03
- ~~girl friend~~ Y07.434
- foster father Y07.420
- foster mother Y07.421
- girl friend Y07.04
- nonfamily member ~~NEC Y07.59~~Y07.50
- - specified NEC Y07.59
- partner of parent
- - female Y07.04~~3~~4
- - male Y07.03~~4~~32

**Place of occurrence** Y92.9

- ambulatory health services establishment NEC Y92.538
- ambulatory surgery center Y92.530
- children='s home - see Place of occurrence, residence, institutional, orphanage
- dentist office Y92.531
- doctor's office Y92.531
- healthcare provider office Y92.531
- not applicable Y92.9
- old people='s home - see Place of occurrence, residence, institutional, specified NEC
- outpatient surgery center Y92.530
- physician office Y92.531
- residence (non-institutional) (private) Y92.00
- - institutional Y92.10



- - - children=s home - see Place of occurrence, residence, institutional, orphanage
- same day surgery center Y92.530
- urgent (health) care center Y92.532
- ~~zoo Y92.89~~(zoological garden) Y92.834

**Procedure** (operation)

- intended for another patient done on wrong patient Y65.52

**Pushed, pushing** (accidental) (injury in) (overexertion) - see also Overexertion

- by other person(s) (accidental) W51
- - before moving object ~~Y02~~NEC Y02.8
- - - motor vehicle Y03.42.0
- - - subway train Y02.1
- - - train Y02.1
- - from
- - - high place NEC
- - - - in accidental circumstances W17.89

**Radiation** (exposure to)

- ionized, ionizing (particles, artificially accelerated)
- - specified NEC W88.8

**Rape** (attempted) ~~Y06~~T74.2-**Run over** (accidentally) (by)

- animal (not being ridden) NEC W55.89
- - ~~being ridden V06~~

**Running**

- before moving object X81.8

**Scratched by**

- person(s) (accidentally) W50.4
- - in
- - - legal intervention ~~Y35.894~~
- - - - suspect Y35.8903

**Sequelae** (of)

- accident NEC - see W00-X58 with ~~q as terminal character~~7th character S
- assault (homicidal) (any means) - see X92-Y08 with ~~q as terminal character~~7th character S
- homicide, attempt (any means) - see X92-Y08 with ~~q as terminal character~~7th character S
- injury undetermined whether accidentally or purposely inflicted - see Y21-Y33 with ~~q as terminal character~~7th character S
- intentional self-harm (classifiable to X71-X83) - see X71-X83 with ~~q as terminal character~~7th character S
- legal intervention - see Y35 with ~~q as terminal character~~with 7th character S
- motor vehicle accident - see V00-V99 with ~~q as terminal character~~with 7th character S
- suicide, attempt (any means) - see X71-X83 with ~~q as terminal character~~7th character S
- transport accident - see V00-V99 with ~~q as terminal character~~7th character S

**Slipping** (accidental) (on same level) (with fall) W01.0

- without fall W18.40
- - due to
- - - specified NEC W18.49
- - - stepping from one level to another W18.43
- - - stepping into hole or opening W18.42
- - - stepping on object W18.41

**Sodomy** (attempted) by force ~~Y05~~T74.2-**Status of external cause** Y99.9

- child assisting in compensated work for family Y99.8
- family member assisting in compensated work for other family member Y99.8
- volunteer activity Y99.82

**Stepped on**

- by
- - animal (not being ridden) NEC W55.89
- - - ~~being ridden V06~~

**Stepping on**

- object W22.8
- - with fall W18.931

**Struck** (accidentally) by

- animal (not being ridden) NEC W55.89
- ~~being ridden V06~~
- lightning ~~X33~~- see subcategory T75.0
- mammal NEC W55.89
- - marine W56.892
- marine animal W56.892
- other person(s) W50.0
- - in legal intervention ~~Y35.814~~
- - - injuring
- - - - bystander Y35.8132
- - - - law enforcement personnel Y35.8121
- - - - suspect Y35.8143
- thunderbolt ~~X33~~- see subcategory T75.0

**Stumbling**

- over
- - animal NEC W6401.0
- without fall W18.40
- - due to
- - - specified NEC W18.49
- - - stepping from one level to another W18.43
- - - stepping into hole or opening W18.42
- - - stepping on object W18.41

**Suicide, suicidal** (attempted) (by) X83.8

- jumping
- - before moving object X81.8
- - - subway train X81.1
- - - train X81.1
- late effect of attempt - ~~see X71-X83 with q as terminal character~~7th character S
- lying before moving object, train, vehicle X81.8
- sequelae of attempt - ~~see X71-X83 with q as terminal character~~7th character S

**Terrorism** (involving) Y38.9x-

- biological weapons Y38.6x-
- chemical weapons Y38.7x-
- conflagration Y38.3x-
- explosion Y38.2x-
- - destruction of aircraft Y38.1x-
- - marine weapons Y38.0x-
- fire Y38.3x-
- firearms Y38.4x-
- hot substances Y38.35x-
- nuclear weapons Y38.5x-
- specified method NEC Y38.8x-

**Thunderbolt** ~~X33~~- see subcategory T75.0**Trampled by animal** NEC W55.89

- ~~being ridden V06~~

**Tripping**

- over
- - animal W6401.0
- without fall W18.40
- - due to
- - - specified NEC W18.49
- - - stepping from one level to another W18.43
- - - stepping into hole or opening W18.42
- - - stepping on object W18.41

Underdosing of necessary drugs, medicaments or biological substances Y63.61**Vibration** (causing injury) W49.9**Victim** (of)

- lightning ~~X33~~- see subcategory T75.0
- volcanic eruption ~~X35-~~

**Volcanic eruption** (any injury) ~~X35-~~

**War operations** (injuries to military personnel and civilians during war, civil insurrection and peacekeeping missions) (by) (from) (involving) Y36.90-

- fire Y36.30-
- - specified NEC Y36.39-
- fragments (from) (of)
- - improvised explosive device [IED] (person-borne) (roadside) (vehicle-borne)\_Y36.26-
- friendly fire Y36.92-
- weapons
- - of mass destruction [WMD] Y36.91-
- weapon of mass destruction [WMD] Y36.91-

**Wound** (accidental) NEC X58 - see also Injury

- battle Y36.90 - see also War operations